
CITY OF LAKELAND 

Nuisance Abatement Board 
February 19, 2025 

REGULAR MEETING 

CALL TO ORDER – 3 p.m. 

ROLL CALL 
Terry Carter, Dawn Chapman, Elena Giarratano, Daniel Price, John Quirk III, David 

Stille, and Alonzo Thompson 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES – November 20, 2024 

NEW MEMBER – Elena Giarratano 

ELECT NEW VICE CHAIR  

SWEAR IN WITNESSES 

COMPLAINTS 
NAB 25-001 – 4406 Horse Creek 

MISCELLANEOUS 

CALL FOR ADJOURNMENT 

1



DRAFT 
1 

Nuisance Abatement Board November 20, 2024 
Nuisance Abatement Board 

November 20, 2024 

The Nuisance Abatement Board met in the City Commission Chamber.  Chair David 
Stille and Members Terry Carter, Dawn Chapman, Daniel Price, James Ring, and Alonzo 
Thompson were present.  Assistant City Manager Alex Landback, City Clerk Kelly Koos, 
General Counsel David Carmichael, and Officers Hammersla and Mcguirk were present. 

Call to Order 

David Stille called the meeting to order at 3 p.m. 

Roll Call 

City Clerk Kelly Koos called the roll. 

Approval of August 21, 2024 Minutes 

Action:  James Ring moved to approve the minutes.  Daniel Price seconded and the 
motion carried unanimously. 

Swear In Witnesses 

Alex Landback administered the oath. 

NAB24-008 - 831 Glendale Street 

Officer Hammersla presented the case.  His presentation included: 
• Photos of the house.
• Photos of people living in the home.
• Laura Sisson's arrest records.
• Samantha Sisson's arrest records.
• September 18, 2024 Summary of Seizure from the search warrant.
• Evidence of a stolen motorcycle in the back yard.
• Information on previous abatements on Belmar under Laura Sisson's care.
• There was ongoing activity resulting in a search warrant.
• There have been 3 offenses in a 6-month period.

Daniel Price asked who tried to run?  One of the guests. 

James Ring asked if there were any overdose calls at the location.  That was provided 
in the original affidavit. 

Renee Sullivan lived near the subject property.  She has 8 children.  This is an ongoing 
problem.  There are dangerous people coming and going from the residence at all hours 
every day.  She cannot afford to move.  She and her children are trapped in the home 

2



DRAFT 
2 

Nuisance Abatement Board November 20, 2024 
and hemmed into a small segment of their street.  Someone came out of the subject 
property to her house on a bike and came into her yard.  She wanted to protect her 
children.  She cannot go out there and engage with them.  She does not want them to 
come on her property.  Another lady came into her yard up to where she parks her car.  
This is getting closer and closer to her home and her children.  This is a residential 
neighborhood.  They are running a business.  The consequences do not outweigh the 
rewards.  She did noy want her children being taught to sell drugs. 

Terry Carter asked how long this had been going on.  Ms. Sullivan:  a little over  a year. 

Philip Oswald lived across the street.  Ms. Sullivan nailed it.  He had children in his home 
too.  They are selling at all hours of the night.  We do not want this on our street.  He 
was worried about the dangerous elements.  He did not worry about the neighbors who 
lived there.  They keep to themselves.  They have gradually become more brazen. 

William Johns lived on Glendale.  It is a great community with lots of kids.  It is on the 
golf course.  Kids are using the trail.  People are passed out on the bench in the 
neighborhood.  Strange cars are in and out.  Activity has not slowed since the search 
warrant.  Today at noon there was traffic.  It is obvious.  He felt the situation was time 
critical.  There are people who are not here because they are afraid of retaliation.  Their 
neighborhood is exposed to possible danger.  They are facilitating lots of strange people 
coming through the neighborhood on a regular basis.  He feared for their safety.  He and 
his wife are active and out walking frequently.  It is a great community but they cannot 
tolerate what is happening any longer. 

Daniel Price asked about those who were arrested.  Officer Hammersla responded that 
2 of the 7 are still in jail with no bond. 

David Carmichael explained that the owner is present, Laura Sisson. 

Laura Sisson came forward.  She apologized to the neighbors.  She inherited the house 
last year in September.  She was gone, in prison.  She did not get out until the end of 
March.  She has only been there 6 months.  Four of those 6 months she rented a room 
somewhere to stay away.  She moved out because she did not know what to do.  She 
has tried to stop it unsuccessfully.  There have been no drug sales since she has been 
there.  Her roommate got home today around 12:30.  She is selling some things on 
Facebook .  There is a kid from the area who rides a bike and he is helping her clean 
out the home.  She plans to rent or sell the home.  She has a place to go, it is just a 
matter of packing up and getting out of there.  There are no drugs being sold since she 
has been out.  She asked for time to rent the place out or sell the home.  She apologized 
to the neighbors.  She never called the police to ask for help because it was her daughter.  
She is working on getting her daughter's power of attorney so she can move forward.  
She lives there with David Boss and his fiancé Laura Grubbs. 

Officer Hammersla could not speak to the sales happening during the night.  There are 
pictures and texts coming in from neighbors from the last month. 

3



DRAFT 
3 

Nuisance Abatement Board November 20, 2024 

Laura Sisson asked for time to get out.  She requested 35-45 days. 

This was Ms. Sisson’s third time before the Nuisance Abatement Board.  That spoke to 
her credibility. 

The police recommended the Board finds that a nuisance exists, close the property but 
allow for the sale should a buyer come forward. 

The Board discussed options: 
• Boarding up the house but allowing for the sale of the property.
• Closing the property for one year with 30-day’s notice.
• Closing the property 30 days from today, November 20, 2024.
• Ms. Sisson can reach out if she finds a buyer.

Renee Sullivan:  The whole point in the abatement is to stop the people from coming.  If 
she leaves tomorrow, they will still be coming.  Having the house empty is what will stop 
the traffic. 

David Stille: The soonest we can board it up is 30 days. 

Ms. Sullivan knew all this was happening a long time ago.  She wanted the Board to act. 

Action:  Daniel Price moved to close the property one year.  James Ring seconded 
and the motion carried unanimously. 

Alex Landback clarified effective today there is a finding that a nuisance exists, and the 
house will be closed in 30 days (December 20, 2024) for 1 year.  The Board agreed. 

James Ring spoke to the community members and encouraged them to continue to work 
with the police department until the house is abated. 

Alex explained that at the 30-day mark the City will go in and board up the house.   No 
one will be permitted on that property for one year.  After that one-year mark,  the city 
will unboard the house.  At the end of the year, the owner could return.  If there is a new 
owner, it could change. 

NAB24-009 - 1024 N Lincoln Ave 

David Carmichel came forward and introduced the case. 

Officer McGuirk presented the case.  The City Clerk has requested a copy of his 
presentation. 

• The original complaint came from neighborhood complaints.
• They are affecting the quality of life in the neighborhood.
• Reviewed police response over 11 years.

4



DRAFT 
4 

Nuisance Abatement Board November 20, 2024 

• Showed photo of home.
• The owner was here today.  She has owned the property since 2000.  The

resident is her grandchild.  He is currently in Polk County Jail.
• Also arrested is Cedric Hudson a family friend of Omega Henry.
• Showed photos of others arrested at the subject address.
• Showed video of interview of Cynthia Powell right after the search warrant.
• Drugs, firearms, and ammunition were recovered in the home.  The great

grandchild was in the home.

The police recommended the house be boarded up.  It is currently occupied by Ms. 
Powell.  She has never reached out for assistance. 

Cynthia Powell and Terry Powell (husband and wife) lived at 1024 N Lincoln Ave.  Mr. 
Powell became ill in December 2023.  He was hospitalized for 3 months.  He then went 
into a rehab facility.  They have been living in Waneta in his nephew’s home since March 
2024.  Mrs. Powell was not home when all this was going on.   She did not know things 
were like this in her home.  She just happened to be there the day the house was raided. 
She had an appointment with the home health nurse and was caught up in the raid.  The 
great grandchild was there with her.  He does not stay in that home.  She had just arrived 
that morning to meet her nurse.   

Mr. Powell explained they raised those two adult males, their grandsons.  Omega Henry 
does not live in the home.  He lives at another address.  Cedric Hudson still lives in the 
house.  Cedric Hudson always had a job.  Mr. Powell did not know how he got caught 
up in Omega Henry's junk.  There is only one bedroom.  Cedric Hudson works at Publix.  

Officer Mcguirk explained the seizures were from two rooms.  Omega Henry claims that 
location as his residency.  Omega Henry and Cedric Hudson were the focus of the 
search warrant. 

Terry Powell explained Omega Henry and Cedric Hudson were telling them they were 
keeping the house straight and mowing the lawn.  The Powells did not know what was 
going on.  Mr. Powell is living at 116 E Drive.  After all this, Mrs. Powell moved back to 
the house.  Their daughter is coming to town to get the house straight.  He is trying to 
improve his health so he can move back home with his wife. 

The Board discussed their options: 
• Setting a future hearing in 90 days.
• Evicting the problem subjects from the property.
• Neighborhood Liaison Officers (NLO) can monitor the property for the 90 days.
• Requiring the property owners to evict Omega Henry prior to the next hearing.

At 4:05 p.m. David Carmichael stepped out for 5 minutes. 

5



DRAFT 
5 

Nuisance Abatement Board  November 20, 2024 
Action:  James Ring moved to schedule a follow-up hearing in 90-days1 and 
recommended the owners to evict Omega Henry from the property.  Dawn 
Chapman seconded and the motion carried unanimously. 
 
James ring explained this is his final meeting until next year.  He is being deployed  for 
one year to the Pentagon. 
 
Adjourned 4:14 p.m. 
 

 
1 February 19, 2025 is the first NAB hearing following the 90-day monitoring. 

6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17


	02-19-25 Agenda
	11-20-2024 NAB minutes
	4406 Horse Creek Lane Complaint  Backup
	Nuisance Abatement Complaint - 4406 Horse Creek Lane
	Back up for NAB Complaint - 4406 Horse Creek Lane

	4406 Horse Creek Lane Notice
	4406 Horse Creek Lane Certified Mail Receipt



